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 Donald B. Tobin 

Dean and Professor of Law 
 

500 West Baltimore Street 
Baltimore, MD 21201 

dtobin@law.umaryland.edu 

 

 
 
October 29, 2021 

 
 
James L. Shea 
City Solicitor 
Baltimore City Department of Law 
100 N. Holliday Street, Suite 101 
Baltimore, MD 21202 
 
Dear City Solicitor Shea, 
 

The law deans of the University of Maryland and the University of Baltimore are 
members of the advisory board in accordance with the city charter, as amended by the City 
voters after appointment by the Mayor and the Chair of the City Council.  The principal reason 
for our membership on the Committee is to be independent members who are neither elected 
officials nor employees of the city.  It is that expertise I bring to this evaluation, and I have 
concentrated my remarks in areas that align with that purpose. 

 
 As a start, I agree with the ultimate conclusions of City Soliciitor Jim Shea regarding the 
performance of the Inspector General.  I appreciate the way he has conducted this review in a 
an objective, non-political way. The Board has clearly taken the independence of the Inspector 
General seriously, and I appreciate the effort of the Board to move this review forward. 
 
 City Solicitor Shea’s memo outlines the Board’s investigation into the performance of 
the Inspector General, and I do not have much to add to City Solicitor Shea’s review.  I highlight 
three areas for the Inspector General. 
 
 First, one of the most important aspects of leadership is the capacity to assemble a 
team of high performing colleagues who help support and lead areas of the office.  I commend 
the Inspector General for bringing her top leaders to the hearing.  I was impressed by both the 
competence, leadership and passion of her team members who appeared at the meeting.  They 
demonstrated a strong knowledge of the micro issues faced by the office, and had a clear 
passion for their work. The interaction and collegiality between team members reflected 
positively on the Inspector General’s management.  
 
 Second, during the review hearing there was discussion with the Inspector General 
about strategic planning in her office.  I agree with the City Soliictor’s assessment that the 
Inspector General should engage in strategic planning for her office.  The strategic plan would 
guide the unit’s work and provide more transparency to the people in Baltimore. 
 
 



I also agree with the City Solicitor that it is important for the Inspector General to be 
seen as a fair and independent examiner of cases before the office.  This requires that she be 
extremely careful with regard to the facts she presents and the context in which those facts are 
presented. 
 

Finally, I commend the City and its voters for seeking a means of having oversight of the 
Office of the Inspector General that seeks to remove political interference.  I recognize that the 
Inspector General has some concerns about the organization of the Board.  While an Inspector 
General must be independent, there must also be some form of oversight of operations for any 
public official placed with this kind of trust. I look forward to the Board working with the 
Inspector General to implement clear understandings of the proper role of the Board and its 
interaction with the Inspector General. 
 
     Sincerely, 

      
     Donald B. Tobin 
     Dean and Professor of Law 
 
DBT/tr 
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